
 1 

                                APPROVED 

TOWN OF LOUDON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 27, 2014 
 

Chairman Dave Powelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 

The following members were present:  Chairman Dave Powelson, Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Vice Chairman 

Ned Lizotte, Earl Tuson, and alternate George Saunderson.   

Howard Pearl asked that a moment of silence be observed in honor of ZBA member Jim Venne who passed 

away on February 16
th

. 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

Regular Hearing – Earl Tuson moved to accept the minutes of January 23, 2014; seconded by George 

Saunderson.  All were in favor.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Application #Z14-02, Environmental Soils Management, Inc (ESMI) – Special Exception, C/I District, Map 50, 

Lot 24 on International Drive.  Rich Trudeau, Robert Martin, Steve Bennitt, and Andy Drobat represented 

ESMI.  Mr. Trudeau explained the proposal to be able to operate 24/7 at some points during the year.  He said 

this has been a tough winter and natural gas prices have spiked.  Mr. Trudeau said the typical average is 

$7,000/day to operate in the summer, and they have seen up to $90,000/day to operate this winter.  He 

explained that ESMI contracts with environmental companies and it is hard to predict costs like these that have 

a huge impact on the business.  He spoke about the number of tons of material treated and recycled each month, 

noting that they cannot afford to operate at those high costs.  Mr. Trudeau explained that they are looking for 

some relief on operations.  He said gas prices are typically lower on weekends since the draw of businesses is 

usually during the week.  He said they would not operate every weekend, only when economical for them.  He 

stated having some relief in the fall would put them in better shape for winter, allowing them to better manage 

through the spikes.  Mr. Trudeau spoke about not being able to buy in the futures market if they cannot run on 

the weekend as they would have to sell it back if not used.   

 Roy Merrill spoke about a show he had seen on energy, with the liquid natural gas coming into Boston.  

There was brief discussion on the gas situation.  Mr. Trudeau stated that ESMI has been a viable business in 

Loudon for twenty-two years; the business pays a host community fee to the Town, supports the local school, 

etc.  Ned Lizotte asked how many days they have operated in recent months.  Andy Drobat said they ran six 

days in February, eight days in January, and had a heavy workload in December so had to run despite the higher 

costs.  Mr. Lizotte asked to clarify if they got relief they would be able to do weekends.  Mr. Drobat explained 

that it would depend on temperatures and costs as they need warmer weather for lower cost.  Rich Trudeau said 

they would not want 24/7, 365 days a year; they just need some flexibility to get through tougher spots.  He said 

things pick up after Labor Day weekend so they were thinking the fall and winter.   

 George Saunderson asked if they would operate Tuesday through Sunday or something like that during 

the spring and summer since it is price generated and the gas is cheapest on Saturday and Sunday.  Mr. Trudeau 

said they would not need to during the spring and summer as the prices stabilize.  Mr. Saunderson asked if it 

would help if the Board gave six months of relief.  Earl Tuson suggested October 1
st
 through March 31

st
.  There 

was discussion about why Sunday hours had been restricted.   Resident Carole Soule said the plant is still 

loud.  Rich Trudeau pointed out that one item in the agreement from years ago was that ESMI would work on 

cutting the noise.  He said they have done that with several modifications to the process and structures.  Ms. 

Soule said she was glad that was done.  Ned Lizotte reviewed the reason behind the request for weekend hours 

as Ms. Soule arrived after the applicants had addressed that.  Mr. Trudeau stated that they do not anticipate the 

total annual operating hours to increase.  He said this is all temperature and cost driven; they could operate on a 

Sunday but might not be able to operate other days.   



 2 

 Dave Powelson spoke about the history of the changes and reviews over the years.  He said they 

increased hours to cut the hours of cool down and start up.  Mr. Trudeau said that was correct as the 

shutdown/start up process is hard on equipment.  He said the key is to keep the unit running.  Mr. Powelson 

reviewed that the current operating hours do not include from 5 p.m. on Saturday to 6 a.m. on Monday and that 

the applicant is asking for those hours with flexibility.   

 Chairman Powelson asked Ms. Soule if she had any suggestions or concessions that she would like 

considered.  Ms. Soule said her biggest concern is Sunday as they have visitors at their farm and inn.  She 

mentioned that they have new windows which do cut the night noise and with ESMI’s efforts to lessen the noise 

she felt it would be okay.  She said she does not want to stand in the way of them making money.  Andy Drobat 

noted that the cost of ESMI being there is minimal to the Town, speaking about the low number of fire and 

ambulance calls over the years, being on a private road, and having no impact on the school system.   

 The chairman stated that the applicant is looking for modification of operating hours when economically 

necessary.  He went through the points of the application with Steve Bennitt.  Chairman Powelson asked if there 

were any questions from the Board.  Howard Pearl said he could be comfortable extending the hours from 

October 1
st
 through March 31

st
.  He asked Ms. Soule if she was okay with that proposal.  Ms. Soule said she 

appreciated being asked and being able to offer input.  She stated that she would be in agreement with that 

proposal.  Earl Tuson suggested that the Board might grant the rest of this winter.  Roy Merrill suggested they 

give them a year since this winter is about done.   

 Howard Pearl said they have seen improvements at the facility and efforts to work with the Town.  He 

noted that there were no abutters present and only one member of the public so he did not feel there was too 

much concern from the public.  Chairman Powelson spoke about others who were involved in previous 

meetings on ESMI and the notification process.  Roy Merrill stated that abutters have been notified and this is a 

legally noticed meeting.  He said the Board would not typically worry about if interested parties were notified 

or not in other situations.  

 Robert Martin explained that they need maintenance days at the plant so would not run weeks on end.  

He said six day operation is the maximum as they have to maintain a high level of efficiency.  ESMI 

representatives noted that they are not staffed to run non-stop.   

 Chairman Powelson asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak in favor of the application.  He 

read an email from Brad Thompson of Northern Precast Design, in favor of the proposal.   

 Howard Pearl stated that ESMI has demonstrated that they are very willing to work with the concerns of 

residents and the Town is not getting complaints.  He said this speaks well for the business.  Mr. Pearl made a 

motion to allow ESMI to operate seven days a week, twenty-four hours a day, from October 1
st
 through 

March 31
st
, conventional hours per the agreement to run from April 1

st
 through September 30

th
 and 

receiving hours to remain the same year-round; seconded by Ned Lizotte.   
 The chairman asked if Board members were in agreement with the points of the application.  George 

Saunderson said #2 was a little ‘iffy’, noting that sound is a funny thing but he basically has no problem with 

the request.  Mr. Powelson said he hedged on #2 as well because of the history.  Andy Drobat said ESMI wants 

to operate a professional business with professional operators.  Roy Merrill said he has known Mr. Drobat for 

several years and he has always done what he said.  He said their track record speaks for itself.   

 A roll vote was taken:  Earl Tuson – yes; Ned Lizotte – yes; Dave Powelson – yes; Roy Merrill – 

yes; Howard Pearl – yes.  Unanimous - APPROVED 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Howard Pearl made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.; seconded by Ned Lizotte.  All were in favor. 

 

Submitted by, 

 

 

Donna White 

Administrative Assistant 


